
Evan A. Nelson
Direct Dial: 612.672.8396 
Direct Fax: 612.642.8396 
evan.nelson@maslon.com

March 18, 2020 

Via eFS 

The Honorable John H. Guthmann 
Ramsey County District Court 
1470 Ramsey County Courthouse 
15 Kellogg Boulevard West 
St. Paul, MN 55102 

Re: In the Matter of … the Proposed NorthMet Project St. Louis County Hoyt Lakes and 
Babbitt Minnesota
Ramsey County Court File No. 62-cv-19-4626 

Dear Judge Guthmann: 

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic and related events, we write with a request in the above-
referenced matter. As you know, the Court set an April 1, 2020 deadline, or 30 days after the March 
2 service of the hearing’s final transcript, for the parties to file their post-hearing briefs and 
proposed findings of fact, conclusion of law, and order (collectively, the “Post-Hearing 
Submissions”). Relators request a three-week extension of the deadline for our Post-Hearing 
Submissions, moving the deadline to April 22, 2020. We also request that the deadline for our 
reply briefs, currently due April 22, 2020, would be extended by three weeks to May 13, 2020. We 
have conferred with counsel for Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (“MPCA”) and Poly Met 
Mining, Inc. (“PolyMet”); both MPCA and PolyMet take no position as to this request. 

We have reviewed Governor Walz’s Emergency Executive Orders, Chief Justice Gildea’s 
administrative order, and the Second Judicial District’s COVID-19 Information Guide. To the 
extent this proceeding is an extension of an appeal of an administrative decision, it is assigned a 
medium priority level according to the Limited Court Service Case Priorities List. We understand 
and of course agree that the Court must prioritize other matters at this time. That said, we do not 
believe that these orders necessarily impact our deadlines for Post-Hearing Submissions. 

Many of us, however, have lost work days over the previous week. Our offices are transitioning to 
support remote work, requiring planning, technology modifications, and preparing our home 
offices for extended remote work. Some of us have lost work days due to travel restrictions and 
rescheduling. And with the closure of Minnesota’s K-12 schools, some of us have lost work days, 
and anticipate losing additional work days, to care for our children. We are implementing our 
respective plans to continue work during the pandemic, and we hope to be able to resume a more 
normal work schedule within the next few days. It is difficult, however, to know the extent of how 
this will disrupt our work. Therefore, a three-week extension is reasonable given the parties’ and 
the court’s need to respond to COVID-19.  
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As this request is unopposed, Relators also request that the Court order relief without a hearing. I 
have enclosed a proposed order, which will also be sent to your chambers via email. 

We hope that you, your staff, and all those at the courthouse remain well during this pandemic. 

Respectfully submitted, 

MASLON LLP

 /s/ Evan A. Nelson  
WILLIAM Z. PENTELOVITCH (#0085078) 
MARGARET S. BROWNELL (#0307324) 
EVAN A. NELSON (#0398639) 
90 South Seventh Street 
3300 Wells Fargo Center 
Minneapolis, MN 55402-4140 
Phone: (612) 672-8200 
Email: bill.pentelovitch@maslon.com 
margo.brownell@maslon.com 
evan.nelson@maslon.com 

MINNESOTA CENTER FOR 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADVOCACY 

/s/ Elise L. Larson_____________________ 
ELISE L. LARSON (#0393069) 
KEVIN REUTHER (#0266255) 
1919 University Avenue West 
Saint Paul, MN 55105 
Phone: (651) 223-5969 
Email: elarson@mncenter.org 
kreuther@mncenter.org 

NILAN JOHNSON LEWIS PA

/s/ Daniel Poretti  
DANIEL Q. PORETTI (#185152) 
MATTHEW C. MURPHY (#0391948) 
120 South Sixth Street, Suite 400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402-4501 
Phone: (612) 305-7500 
Email: dporetti@nilanjohnson.com 
mmurphy@nilanjohnson.com 

Attorneys for Relators Center for Biological 
Diversity, Friends of the Boundary Waters 
Wilderness, and Minnesota Center for 
Environmental Advocacy 

cc: All Counsel (via eFS)

JUST CHANGE LAW OFFICES

 /s/ Paula Maccabee  
PAULA G. MACCABEE (#0129550) 
1961 Selby Avenue 
Saint Paul, MN 55104 
Phone: (651) 646-8890 
Email: pmaccabee@justchangelaw.com 

Attorneys for Relator WaterLegacy

FOND DU LAC BAND OF LAKE 
SUPERIOR CHIPPEWA

/s/ Sean Copeland  
SEAN W. COPELAND (#0387142) 
1720 Big Lake Road 
Cloquet, MN 55720 
Phone: (218) 878-2607 
Email: seancopeland@fdlrez.com 

VANESSA L. RAY-HODGE (pro hac vice)
500 Marquette Avenue NW, Suite 660 
Albuquerque, NM 87102 
Phone: (505) 247-0147 
Email: vrayhodge@abqsonosky.com 

MATTHEW L. MURDOCK (pro hac vice) 
1425 K Street N.W., Suite 600 
Washington, D.C. 20005 
Phone: (202) 682-0240 
Email: mmurdock@sonosky.com

Attorneys for Relators Fond du Lac Band of 
Lake Superior Chippewa 
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